
 

 

MINUTES 

MEETING OF THE POLICE COMMISSION 

Monday, March 14, 2016 – 6:00 p.m. 

Town Hall Conference Room 

 
Present: Commissioner Kenneth W. Heidkamp, Chairman 

Commissioner Fran Barton 

Commissioner George Moreira 

 

Also 

Present: 

Acting Chief Fran Dabbo 

Officer Ed Demers 

Barbara J. Whitaker, Recording Clerk 

Linda Zukauskas, Reporter - Voices 

    
Excused 

Absent: 

Commissioner Paul Bowler 

Commissioner Frank Cipriano 
  

 

Call to Order with Pledge of Allegiance 

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Approval of Minutes of February 16, 2016 Special Meeting 

Commissioner Barton MOTIONED to approve the minutes of the February 16, 2016 

special meeting, SECONDED by Commissioner Heidkamp.  Commissioner Moreira 

ABSTAINED from the VOTE.  The vote passed two to one. 

 

Chief’s Report – Acting Chief Dabbo 

The Chief indicated that the Department is expecting the new Explorer by the 

end of this week or the beginning of next week. 

 

The Toughbook is functioning with the license plate reader, so now they can use 

COLLECT.  The Chief has several calls into the firm that installs the license plate 

readers to have them come over and check to be sure that everything is 

operational with the hardware.  

 

They hand the delivered the MOU to the Department of Motor Vehicles.  The DMV has 

an Acting Commissioner, so the Chief is staying in touch to make sure it is being 

followed through.  The Chief had Attorney Smith review the MOU with the Waterbury 

Police Department. 

 

The First Selectman inquired about the uniform policy.  The Chief found a policy 

from 1992.  He will use this as a template and he has other policies he will use in 

conjunction with the policy currently being used. 

 

 TOWN OF MIDDLEBURY 

POLICE COMMISSION 



MINUTES - MEETING OF THE POLICE COMMISSION 

Monday, March 14, 2016 – 6:00 p.m.  

Town Hall Conference Room 

Page 2 

 

The Department has taken in a large sum of money which is in the evidence 

room.  They opened up an evidence account at ION Bank.  Most police 

departments have accounts like this.  This is a locked account and they have to 

go through Finance to use the money.  Whatever the court instructs the MPD to 

do at the end of a case, the monies will be disbursed.  The Chief indicated that 

there is an evidence policy that has to be amended to reflect the new 

account.  The Chairman requested that the Chief have the policy ready for the 

next meeting. 

 

At this time Chief presented a copy of letters received from the Chiefs of the 

Naugatuck and Watertown Police Departments requesting a reactivation of the 

private duty agreement.  The Chief said that this would be a benefit for the 

Town to participate.  Attorney Smith advised that this had to go before the 

Board of Selectmen.  The Chairman said this would be discussed under new 

business. 

 

The Chief indicated that the officers will start firearms training.  Officer Slaiby will 

take the lead on this, and they will use the Southbury range. 

 

The Chief explained that the toughbooks are two or three years old now.  The 

Department received a grant of $7,000 from the Westover School which he will 

use to purchase the mounts for the tough books.  The additional mounts will be 

purchased with the Thomaston Savings Bank Grant. 

 

Officer Blick’s assigned SUV will be put into service and it will become the part-

time officer’s vehicle. There was some discussion on service and disposing of 

vehicles. 

 

The Chairman inquired about the monthly activity report, he asked that there is 

a comparison on whether activity is going up or down from last year.  He sees 

the activity, but has nothing to compare it to.   

 

Chairman’s Report – Commissioner Heidkamp 

The Chairman acknowledged the progress that the Chief has made in taking 

the initiative in the license plate reader,  

 

The Chief indicated that many of the reporting issues have been resolved 

according to the officers.  He added that they are taking steps to ensure that 

this does not happen again.  Officer Demers said things are improving and that 

before information was not coming through correctly.  In the last few weeks, 



MINUTES - MEETING OF THE POLICE COMMISSION 

Monday, March 14, 2016 – 6:00 p.m.  

Town Hall Conference Room 

Page 3 

 

there has been marked improvement.  The Chairman hopes with these 

improvements, progress can be made on instituting the false alarm charge. 

 

Old Business 

The Chairman said that the he and the Chief met with the First Selectman and 

the Chief Financial Officer on Friday to discuss the budget.  The numbers were 

not favorable in terms of what the Board of Selectmen proposed.  These are 

working numbers that have to go before the Board of Finance.  He feels that this 

is the first time in a while that they have a realistic number going in.  The 

Chairman thanked the First Selectman and the Chief Financial Officer for their 

time and assistance. 

 

The Chairman indicated discussions had taken place on some of the policies 

that were approved when Chief Viadero was with the Department, and the 

need for supervision on each shift.    The Chairman asked the former Chief for a 

recommendation on what would be best for the Department.  He is requesting 

Acting Chief Dabbo works with Commissioner Moreira and Attorney Smith to 

discuss supervision recommendations.  This spot (Lieutenant) has been open for 

a while and there is a hole in supervision.  Chief Viadero felt that this could be a 

liability issues with the procedures in place. 

 

The Chairman asked the Chief about expiration dates for post certification. The 

Chief stated that he and Sgt. Desmarais are all set and that training will resume 

in September.   The Chief added that there are 5 or 6 officers that need to go 

through training. 

 

At this time Acting Chief Dabbo presented the Board with a copy of the License 

Plate Reader Policy.  The Acting chief explained that the policy is a compilation 

of three different policies.  From a legal standpoint Attorney Smith said that it is 

good that you have to confirm information with the motor vehicle department, 

from a liability standpoint it is important.  The Chief said that COLLECT rules are 

very strict.  You cannot run a plate for anything other than law enforcement 

purposes only, and the information can only be shared with collect certified 

officers.   

 

Commissioner Barton had some editing suggestions.  The Chairman 

recommended that the changes be made and brought back for approval to 

the Board for next month.  Commissioner Barton MOTIONED to approve the 

policies with the addition of the definitions, SECONDED by Commissioner 

Moreira.  Unanimous approval. 

 



MINUTES - MEETING OF THE POLICE COMMISSION 

Monday, March 14, 2016 – 6:00 p.m.  

Town Hall Conference Room 

Page 4 

 

The Chairman went to a demonstration of the NEXGEN software last week and 

was impressed with the system.  They are not using the system now however the 

Waterbury Police Department is currently using it.  Northwest Public Safety will be 

moving to St. Mary’s in June and the Town will join on.  They are working on 

trying to have the current system “talk” with the global system at ACCUCOM.  

Whatever system is in use at Northwest is what they will probably have to 

acclimate to.  The Chairman said that the newer equipment is more efficient 

and less expensive. 

 

The Chairman asked that the requests are responded to, to let the Departments 

know that they are working on this with Commissioner Moreira and Attorney 

Smith.  He asked for their pros and cons so that they could come up with a 

recommendation at their next meeting so they could forward this onto the 

Board of Selectmen. The Chairman said that he would like to have an open 

discussion to find out what the issues are so that an informed decision can be 

made. 

 

The Chairman asked for the Commissioners to check their calendars for special 

meetings to discuss the Chief of Police position from the first week of April on.  He 

will contact the two Commissioners who were not present.   

 

The Chief made a recommendation for the Department Award of lifesaving 

metal for Officer Demers.  Commissioner Barton MOTIONED to award the 

Lifesaving Metal to Officer Demers, SECONDED by Commissioner Moreira.  

Unanimous approval. 

 

The Chief said that Commissioner Cipriano asked him to write a recommendation 

letter for former Chief Calabrese.  He will present it to him next month. 

 

Officer Demers said that the use of narcotics is up.  Farmington’s budget is over 

because of overdoses.  A state trooper had two saves in the same week.  We 

receive NARCOM from the Fire Department. The Chief said it is part of the 

Central Naugatuck Valley Regional Action Policy. 

 

Commissioner Barton would like to see if the DARE program can be reenacted.  

Chief Dabbo said that he spoke with Keith McLiverty, and they are going to 

develop some type of drug strategy and drug education.  Mr. McLiverty asked 

that the parents be addressed first.  Officer Cronin will assist in putting a program 

together.  They will develop some age appropriate programs for the schools.  

Commissioner Barton said that he did not hear about all of these incidents when 



MINUTES - MEETING OF THE POLICE COMMISSION 

Monday, March 14, 2016 – 6:00 p.m.  

Town Hall Conference Room 

Page 5 

 

the program was active, and now we are seeing repercussions of program 

being down.  

 

Adjournment 

Commissioner Heidkamp MOTIONED to adjourn, SECONDED by Commissioner 

Barton.  Unanimous approval. 

 

These minutes are submitted subject to approval. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Barbara J. Whitaker 
Barbara J. Whitaker 

Recording Clerk 

 

 

 

 


